
Copyright Notices 

Geoscape Administrative Boundaries (comprised of Localities, Local Government Areas 

(LGAs), Wards, ABS Boundaries, Electoral Boundaries, State Boundaries, and Town Points), 
Airports, CadLite, Cadastre, Features of Interest, G-NAF, G-NAF Live (available through 
Geoscape APIs), Greenspace, Hydrology, Land Tenure, Postcode Boundaries, Property, Rail, 

and Transport and Topography © Geoscape Australia. These datasets are created using a 
range of source data including: 

1. Source data © Australian Capital Territory (Environment, Planning and Sustainable 
Development Directorate); 

2. Source data © Commonwealth of Australia (including the Department of Department of 
Industry, Science and Resources, Geoscience Australia, the Australian Electoral 

Commission and the Australian Bureau of Statistics (see note below)); 

3. Source data © New South Wales Crown (Spatial Services, Department of Customer 

Service); 

4. Source data © Northern Territory Government (Department of Infrastructure, Planning 

and Logistics); 

5. Source data © State of Queensland (Department of Resources); 

6. Source data © Government of South Australia (Department for Environment and 
Water); 

7. Source data © Government of Tasmania (Department of Natural Resources and 
Environment Tasmania); 

8. Source data © State of Victoria (Department of Transport and Planning); and 

9. Source data © Western Australian Land Information Authority (Landgate). 

Geoscape Roads © Geoscape Australia. Created using a range of source data including: 

1. Source data listed above; 

2. Source data © Government of South Australia (Department of Planning, Transport and 

Infrastructure); 

3. Source data © State of Victoria (VicRoads); 

4. Legal Speed Zones and Legal Speed Limits, licensed by The Commissioner of Main Roads 
under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International Licence, which has a 

disclaimer of warranties and limitation of liability (open data); and 

5. Speed Limits (on State Highways and Subsidiary Roads) from theLIST © State of 

Tasmania licensed under the Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence (open 
data). 

Geoscape Buildings, Surface Cover, Trees © Geoscape Australia. These datasets are created 
using a range of source data including: 

1. From October 2021, source data © GeoX GIS Innovations Ltd; 

2. From December 2020, Bundaberg Regional Council Planning Scheme 2015 licensed 

by Bundaberg Regional Council under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 
International Licence (open data); 

3. From December 2020, source data © Cairns Regional Council;  

4. From September 2020, TCC City Planning Scheme - Zoning licensed by Townsville City 

Council under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International Licence (open data); 

https://catalogue.data.wa.gov.au/dataset/mrwa-legal-speed-zones
https://catalogue.data.wa.gov.au/dataset/mrwa-legal-speed-limits
https://www.mainroads.wa.gov.au/Pages/default.aspx
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/data/geo-meta-data-record?profileType=&groupName=&bboxNorth=&bboxWest=&bboxSouth=&bboxEast=&query=speed+limit&_keywordCategory=-1&isTasmania=true&custodian=&detailRecordUID=3c322e84-d14a-4a7e-b10d-fc0bdcbb1a62&searchCriteriaURL=query%3Dspeed+limit%26perPage%3D10%26sortBy%3DTitle%3AASC
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/home
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://data.gov.au/data/dataset/bundaberg-regional-council-planning-scheme-2015
https://www.bundaberg.qld.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
http://data-tsvcitycouncil.opendata.arcgis.com/datasets/tcc-city-planning-scheme-zoning
https://www.townsville.qld.gov.au/
https://www.townsville.qld.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/


5. From September 2020, Zone layer of the Zone Maps of the Sunshine Coast Planning 
Scheme 2014 licensed by Sunshine Coast Council under the Creative Commons 

Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence (open data); and 

6. From March 2019, source data © Aerometrex Ltd; 

7. From June 2018, source data © Ipswich City Council;  

8. From October 2017, source data © Mareeba Shire Council; 

9. From October 2017, source data © Lockyer Valley Regional Council;  

10. From October 2017, source data © Fraser Coast Regional Council; 

11. From October 2017, source data © Burdekin Shire Council; 

12. From June 2017, source data © Government of Western Australia (Department of 

Planning, Lands and Heritage); 

13. From June 2017, source data © The State of Victoria (Department of Transport and 

Planning); 

14. From June 2017, Tasmanian Interim Planning Scheme Zone Boundaries and Tasmanian 

Interim Planning Scheme Zoning from theLIST © State of Tasmania licensed under 
the Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence (open data); 

15. From June 2017, source data © Northern Territory of Australia (Department of 
Infrastructure, Planning and Logistics); 

16. From April 2017, source data © Redland City Council; 

17. From April 2017, source data © Noosa Shire Council;  

18. From April 2017, MBRC Planning Scheme Zones (June 2016) licensed by Moreton Bay 

Regional Council under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International Licence 
(open data); 

19. From April 2017, Logan Planning Scheme Dec 2015 licensed by Logan City Council under 
the Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence (open data); 

20. From April 2017, City Plan Zone licensed by City of Gold Coast under the Creative 
Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence (open data); 

21. From April 2017, Brisbane City Plan 2014 Zoning overlay Brisbane City Plan 2014 Zoning 
overlay © Brisbane City Council licensed under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 

International Licence (open data); 

22. From April 2017, Statewide planning schemes information 2009-2010 – Brisbane Central 

Office © State of Queensland (Department of State Development, Manufacturing, 
Infrastructure and Planning) licensed under the Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 

Australia Licence (updated data available 
at http://qldspatial.information.qld.gov.au/catalogue//) (open data); 

23. From December 2016, source data © Government of South Australia (Department for 
Environment and Water); 

24. From December 2016, source data © New South Wales Crown (Spatial Services, 
Department of Customer Service); 

25. From December 2016, source data © Australian Capital Territory (Environment, Planning 
and Sustainable Development Directorate); 

26. From December 2016, source data © Commonwealth of Australia (including Geoscience 

Australia and the Australian Bureau of Statistics (see note below)); and 

27. From December 2016, source data © DigitalGlobe, Inc. 

https://data.sunshinecoast.qld.gov.au/Planning-and-Cadastre/Zones/pqe4-78f8
https://data.sunshinecoast.qld.gov.au/Planning-and-Cadastre/Zones/pqe4-78f8
https://www.sunshinecoast.qld.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/data/geo-meta-data-record?detailRecordUID=d5bc7e84-79c1-4279-b279-c4cc7a363a2f
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/data/geo-meta-data-record?detailRecordUID=1067cbd6-6866-4134-ab9f-9e6f084348d6
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/data/geo-meta-data-record?detailRecordUID=1067cbd6-6866-4134-ab9f-9e6f084348d6
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/home
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
http://data.moretonbay.qld.gov.au/datasets/7e564650f7064f2489a392b13d7d0ee4_0
https://www.moretonbay.qld.gov.au/
https://www.moretonbay.qld.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://www.arcgis.com/home/item.html?id=369762ab80df42d69769d9460a016f2e
http://www.logan.qld.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
http://data.gov.au/dataset/9c5517ba-d71a-409b-9dca-f68858fbd643
http://www.goldcoast.qld.gov.au/default.html
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://www.data.brisbane.qld.gov.au/data/dataset/city-plan-2014-zoning-overlay
https://www.brisbane.qld.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
http://qldspatial.information.qld.gov.au/catalogue/custom/detail.page?fid=%7b01F72621-D901-49D2-97F6-036A8F433A73%7d
http://qldspatial.information.qld.gov.au/catalogue/custom/detail.page?fid=%7b01F72621-D901-49D2-97F6-036A8F433A73%7d
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
http://qldspatial.information.qld.gov.au/catalogue/


Geoscape Planning © Geoscape Australia. Geoscape Planning is created using a range of 
source data including: 

1. Source data © Australian Capital Territory (Environment, Planning and Sustainable 
Development Directorate); 

2. Source data © Commonwealth of Australia (including the Department of Industry, 
Science and Resources, Energy and Resources, Geoscience Australia, the Australian 

Electoral Commission and the Australian Bureau of Statistics (see note below)); 

3. Source data © New South Wales Crown (Spatial Services, Department of Customer 

Services); 

4. Source data © Northern Territory Government (Department of Infrastructure, Planning 

and Logistics); 

5. Source data © State of Queensland (Department of Resources); 

6. Source data © Government of South Australia (Department for Environment and 
Water); 

7. Source data © Government of Tasmania (Department of Natural Resources and 
Environment Tasmania); 

8. Source data © State of Victoria (Department of Transport and Planning); and 

9. Source data © Western Australian Land Information Authority (Landgate). 

10. Statewide planning schemes information 2009-2010 – Brisbane Central Office © State of 
Queensland (Department of State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and 
Planning) licensed under the Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence 

(updated data available at http://qldspatial.information.qld.gov.au/catalogue//) (open 
data); 

11. Brisbane City Plan 2014 Zoning overlay Brisbane City Plan 2014 Zoning overlay 
© Brisbane City Council licensed under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 

International Licence (open data); 

12. City Plan Zone licensed by City of Gold Coast under the Creative Commons Attribution 

3.0 Australia Licence (open data); 

13. Logan Planning Scheme Dec 2015 licensed by Logan City Council under the Creative 

Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence (open data); 

14. MBRC Planning Scheme Zones (June 2016) licensed by Moreton Bay Regional 

Council under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International Licence (open data); 

15. Source data © Noosa Shire Council;  

16. Source data © Redland City Council. 

17. Tasmanian Interim Planning Scheme Zone Boundaries and Tasmanian Interim Planning 

Scheme Zoning from theLIST © State of Tasmania licensed under the Creative 
Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence (open data); 

18. Tasmanian Planning Scheme Zones from theLIST © State of Tasmania licensed under 
the Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence (open data); 

19. Source data © Government of Western Australia (Department of Planning, Lands and 
Heritage); 

20. Source data © Burdekin Shire Council; 

21. Source data © Fraser Coast Regional Council; 

22. Source data © Lockyer Valley Regional Council;  

23. Source data © Mareeba Shire Council; 

24. Source data © Cairns Regional Council;  

http://qldspatial.information.qld.gov.au/catalogue/custom/detail.page?fid=%7b01F72621-D901-49D2-97F6-036A8F433A73%7d
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
http://qldspatial.information.qld.gov.au/catalogue/
https://www.data.brisbane.qld.gov.au/data/dataset/city-plan-2014-zoning-overlay
https://www.brisbane.qld.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
http://data.gov.au/dataset/9c5517ba-d71a-409b-9dca-f68858fbd643
http://www.goldcoast.qld.gov.au/default.html
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://www.arcgis.com/home/item.html?id=369762ab80df42d69769d9460a016f2e
http://www.logan.qld.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
http://data.moretonbay.qld.gov.au/datasets/7e564650f7064f2489a392b13d7d0ee4_0
https://www.moretonbay.qld.gov.au/
https://www.moretonbay.qld.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/data/geo-meta-data-record?profileType=&groupName=&bboxNorth=&bboxWest=&bboxSouth=&bboxEast=&query=Tasmanian+Interim+Planning+Scheme+Zone+Boundaries&_keywordCategory=-1&isTasmania=true&custodian=&detailRecordUID=24c4f4b3-5b42-47ad-8c3f-d962a3a919cb&searchCriteriaURL=query%3DTasmanian+Interim+Planning+Scheme+Zone+Boundaries%26perPage%3D10%26sortBy%3DTitle%3AASC
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/data/geo-meta-data-record?detailRecordUID=1067cbd6-6866-4134-ab9f-9e6f084348d6
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/data/geo-meta-data-record?detailRecordUID=1067cbd6-6866-4134-ab9f-9e6f084348d6
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/home
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/data/geo-meta-data-record?detailRecordUID=3ed7837d-8059-4807-8813-8251163d6fac
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/home
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/


25. Bundaberg Regional Council Planning Scheme 2015 licensed by Bundaberg Regional 
Council under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International Licence (open data); 

26. Source data © Ipswich City Council;  

27. Zone layer of the Zone Maps of the Sunshine Coast Planning Scheme 2014 licensed 

by Sunshine Coast Council under the Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence 
(open data); and 

28. TCC City Planning Scheme - Zoning licensed by Townsville City Council under 
the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International Licence (open data).  

Geoscape Solar © Geoscape Australia. Created using a range of source data including: 

1. Source data from the Geoscape G-NAF, Buildings, Cadastre, Property and Planning 

products listed above;  

2. Source data © GeoX GIS Innovations Ltd; and 

3. Average annual & monthly sunshine duration maps © Commonwealth of Australia , 
Bureau of Meteorology licensed under the Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia 

Licence (open data). 

Geoscape Planning Insights © Geoscape Australia. Created using a range of source data 

including: 

1. Source data from the Geoscape G-NAF and Cadastre products listed above; and  

2. Source data © Archistar Pty Ltd 2023.  

Geoscape Aboriginal Lands © Geoscape Australia. Aboriginal Lands is created using a range 
of source data including: 

1. Source data © Northern Territory Government (Department of Infrastructure, Planning 
and Logistics); 

2. Source data © State of Victoria (Department of Transport and Planning);  

3. Source data © Government of Western Australia (Department of Planning, Lands and 

Heritage); 

4. NSW National Parks and Wildlife Service (NPWS) Estate © State Government of NSW 

and Department of Planning, Industry and Environment 2015 licensed under 
the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International Licence (open data); 

5. Aboriginal Land layer of LIST Cadastral Parcels from theLIST © State of Tasmania 
licensed under the Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence (open data); 

6. Indigenous Land Interests and Description and Grantee ALA and TSILA Lots licensed by 
the State of Queensland (Department of Resources) under the Creative Commons 

Attribution 4.0 International Licence (open data); 

7. Aboriginal Land licensed by Government of South Australia (Department for Energy and 

Mining) licensed under the Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia Licence (open 
data); and 

8. Native Title Determination Outcomes licensed by the National Native Title Tribunal under 
the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International Licence (open data).  

The right to use any open data subsisting in Geoscape data products is licensed directly to 
recipients of Geoscape datasets under the terms of the relevant open licence described 
above. 

https://data.gov.au/data/dataset/bundaberg-regional-council-planning-scheme-2015
https://www.bundaberg.qld.gov.au/
https://www.bundaberg.qld.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://data.sunshinecoast.qld.gov.au/datasets/scrcpublic::zones/about
https://data.sunshinecoast.qld.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
http://data-tsvcitycouncil.opendata.arcgis.com/datasets/tcc-city-planning-scheme-zoning
http://data-tsvcitycouncil.opendata.arcgis.com/datasets/tcc-city-planning-scheme-zoning
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
http://www.bom.gov.au/jsp/ncc/climate_averages/sunshine-hours/index.jsp?period=an#maps
http://www.bom.gov.au/
http://www.bom.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://datasets.seed.nsw.gov.au/dataset/nsw-national-parks-and-wildlife-service-npws-estate3f9e7
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/data/geo-meta-data-record?detailRecordUID=1a1d7f68-9a7f-4493-80a5-d21eeb3dd516
https://www.thelist.tas.gov.au/app/content/home
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://www.resources.qld.gov.au/home
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://catalog.sarig.sa.gov.au/geonetwork/srv/eng/catalog.search#/metadata/43072abe-c924-437d-b56b-5f5f48e3bbb8
https://www.energymining.sa.gov.au/
https://www.energymining.sa.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/
https://data.gov.au/data/dataset/native-title-determination-outcomes
http://www.nntt.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/


Note: As noted above, several Geoscape data products are created using Australian 
Statistical Geography Standard (ASGS) data © Commonwealth of Australia (Australian 

Bureau of Statistics), which is openly available under a Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 
International Licence. 

Disclaimer 

Geoscape Australia endeavours to ensure that its products and services are accurate and 
complete by using source data primarily from Australia’s federal, state and territory 

governments and other reputable sources. However, Geoscape products and services are 
provided ‘as is’, and to the extent permitted by law neither Geoscape Australia, nor its 

distributors, nor Australia’s federal, state and territory governments, nor any other providers 
of source data make any representations or provide any warranties (express or implied) 

about the accuracy or completeness of Geoscape products or services, their fitness for any 
particular purpose or that they are without errors or faults.  

To the extent permitted by law, Geoscape Australia, its distributors, Australia’s federal, state 
and territory governments and any other providers of source data have no liability (including 

liability in negligence) for any losses suffered (including any indirect losses, loss of profits or 
data and any other consequential loss) or expenses incurred arising from use of Geoscape 

products and services for any particular purpose, Geoscape products and services being 
inaccurate or incomplete in any way for any reason or any errors or faults in Geoscape 

products and services, even if Geoscape Australia, its distributors, Australia’s federal, state 
and territory governments or any other providers of source data have been advised of the 

possibility of such losses or expenses. 

 

http://www.abs.gov.au/websitedbs/D3310114.nsf/home/Australian+Statistical+Geography+Standard+(ASGS)
http://www.abs.gov.au/websitedbs/D3310114.nsf/home/Australian+Statistical+Geography+Standard+(ASGS)
http://www.abs.gov.au/
http://www.abs.gov.au/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
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